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THE TOWN OF
17 TEXAS

4700 DREXEL DRIVE, HIGHLAND PARK, TEXAS 75205
Telephone (214) 521-4161

February 7, 2012

The Honorable Mayor, Town Council and the Citizens of the Town of Highland Park:

The Town of Highland Park (“Town”) Financial Management Policies requires that the Town’s Finance
Department prepare a complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm of
licensed certified public accountants. Accordingly, the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Town of
Highland Park, Texas for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011 is hereby issued.

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the Town. Consequently,
management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all the information presented in
this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making the representations, management of the Town has
established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the Town’s assets from
loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the Town’s financial
statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits,
the Town’s comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than
absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. As management, we
assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material
respects.

The Town’s financial statements have been audited by Weaver & Tidwell LLP, Independent Certified Public
Accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial
statements of the Town for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011, are free of material misstatement. The
independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management;
and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon
the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the Town’s financial
statements for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011 are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The
independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this report.

GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the
basic financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of
transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The Town’s MD&A can
be found immediately following the report of the independent auditor.



Profile of the Town

The Town was incorporated in 1913 and chartered as a home-rule city under Texas law in 1975.  The Town is
a fully developed upper-class residential community located in the heart of Dallas, just a few miles north of the
Dallas central business district. The Town occupies approximately 2.2 square miles and serves a population of
about 8,564. The Town is empowered by state statute to levy a property tax on both real and business
personal property located within its boundaries.

The Town operates under the council-manager form of government. Policy-making and legislative authority are
vested in a governing council consisting of the Mayor and five (5) Council members. The Town Council is
responsible for, among other things, passing ordinances, adopting the budget, appointing committees, and
hiring both the Town Administrator (manager) and Town Attorney. The Town Administrator is responsible for
carrying out the policies and ordinances of the Town Council, for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the
Town, and for appointing heads of various departments. The Mayor and Town Council members serve two (2)
year terms with a limit of three (3) terms in either capacity. All elected officials are elected at large.

The Town provides a full range of services, including public safety (police, fire and emergency medical),
maintenance of streets and infrastructure, sanitation services, maintenance of the treated water distribution
system and both sanitary and storm sewer collection and transmission systems, library services as well as
general administrative services.

The annual budget serves as the foundation of the Town’s financial planning and control. The respective
department heads prepare and submit line item budget requests for the operations and maintenance portion of
their respective departments as well as a listing of capital items for consideration. The personnel portion of the
budget is developed by the Town’s Director of Fiscal & Human Resources, utilizing market data compiled from
other cities and compensation professionals. The Town Administrator uses these requests as the starting point
for developing a proposed budget. The Town’s Charter requires that the proposed budget be submitted to the
Town Secretary no later than August 31st with adoption taking place no later than September 30t. The entire
budget process includes public involvement as the various elements composing the budget are reviewed in
open and advertised public meetings. The appropriated budget is prepared by fund and department (e.g. Public
Safety). Department heads may make transfers of appropriations within a department’s budgeted operations
and maintenance levels, however, reallocation of personnel and capital appropriations as well as the transfer of
appropriations between departments must be approved by the Town Administrator. Amendments to budget
dollar amounts must be approved by the Town Council. Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this
report for the General Fund on page 32.

Local economy

During the past several years, the Town has experienced similar economic challenges as other entities in our
region, state and nation. Property tax revenues provide a greater portion of the Town'’s total governmental
revenue stream than in most neighboring cities. Historically, the Town has realized strong property value
growth year-to-year; however, these values were down slightly for 2011. Since the property tax rate was
unchanged from 2010, Property Tax revenues were $220,318 (2.2%) less than the prior year. With the lowest
municipal property tax rate in the Dallas/Ft. Worth Metroplex, property tax revenues are still considered a viable
revenue source.

Building activity fees and investment earnings, two revenue streams that are reflective of the economy, have
decreased from the prior year. Building permits issued during the last two months of the year, however, indicate
an increase in building activity. Sales tax revenue, normally another indicator of the economy, has increased



$148,253 (6.1%) during the year. While Town Management remains optimistic that these signs point to an
improvement in the local economy, the Town is closely monitoring all local economic indicators with the
intention of being able to respond as needed.

During the 2011 year, total revenues increased $1,953,373 (7.8%) and total expenses decreased $181,345
(0.8%). The Net Assets of the Town increased $3,135,033 (4.5%).

Relevant Financial Policies

The Town’s financial operations are guided by the Statement of Financial Management Policies as adopted by
the Town Council. The purpose of these policies is to provide guidelines, in accordance with the applicable
Texas Statues and the Town of Highland Park Charter, Ordinances and Resolutions, for the planning and
direction of the financial affairs of the Town. The intended goal of the Statement of Financial Management
Policies is to enable the Town to adhere to the principles of sound municipal finance and to continue its long-
term stable and positive financial condition.

Long-Term Financial Planning

At September 30, 2011, General Fund unassigned fund balance was $4,132,477 and Enterprise Fund
unrestricted net assets was $3,303,622. The General Fund amount was 28.7% of current year non-capital
expenditures, which is above the minimum fund balance level of 22% required by the Town Council. The
enterprise fund balance was 41.4% of current year non-capital expenditures, which is above the minimum fund
balance level of 25% prescribed by Council.

Town management, in conjunction with the Council, developed and adopted a formal Capital Improvement Plan
(CIP) for the Town during the year. The development of a formal CIP resulted in a separate multi-year capital
budget, which is in addition to the Town’s annual operating budget. Projects selected for inclusion in the CIP
will be evaluated based on several areas: safety, impact on Town services, quality of life, necessity, outside
financial sources, and budgetary impact.

The Town is committed to continue in the funding of its capital program on a pay-as-you-go basis. The
development of a formal CIP and the use of both general and utility fund balances in excess of the established
minimums will each play a significant role in the Town’s short-term and long-term financial strategies.

Major Initiatives

During the year, the Town began work on the DPS Communications and Town Hall Remodeling Project, which
shall be the largest renovation to date of the Town Hall complex. The Capital Improvement Plan for 2012
provides funding of $10,338,263 from the Capital Projects Fund. As the Town prepares future budgets, the
focus will be in four areas: 1) sustaining all current levels of service; 2) recruiting and retaining quality
employees via the Town’s pay plans including its pay for performance component; 3) funding a dynamic CIP;
and 4) identifying viable revenue sources.



Awards

The Town of Highland Park received a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting from the
Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) for its comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2010. This was the twenty-eighth time that the Town has achieved this
prestigious honor. The Certificate of Achievement is the highest form of recognition in governmental accounting
and financial reporting, and its attainment represents a significant accomplishment by the Town and its
management.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year. We believe that our CAFR for the current year
also meets the requirements of the Certificate of Achievement program and are presenting it to the GFOA to
determine its eligibility for another certificate.

The Town also received the GFOA’s Distinguished Budget Presentation Award for its annual budget document
dated October 1, 2010. In order to qualify for the Distinguished Budget Presentation Award, the government’s
budget document was judged to be proficient in several categories, including as a policy document, a financial
plan, an operations guide, and a communications device.

Acknowledgments

The preparation of this report on a timely basis could not be accomplished without the efficient and dedicated
services of the entire staff of the Town. We would like to express our appreciation to all staff members who
assisted and contributed to its preparation. We would also like to thank the Mayor and Town Council members
for their interest and support in planning and conducting the financial operations of the Town in a responsible
and progressive manner.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

Honorable Mayor and
Members of the Town Council
of the Town of Highland Park
Highland Park, Texas

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
Town of Highland Park (Town) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2011, which
collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the management of the Town. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these basic financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
basic financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the basic financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall basic financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the government activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town as of September 30,
2011, and the respective changes in financial position and the cash flows, where applicable,
thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the general fund for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 1(L) to the basic financial statements, the Town implemented GASB
Statement No. 54 “Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions”.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
February 7, 2012, on our consideration of the Town’s internal control over financial reporting
and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of the testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

The information identified in the accompanying table of contents as management's discussion
and analysis is not a required part of the basic financial statements but is supplementary
information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.

AN INDEPENDENT WEAVER AND TIDWELL LLP DALLAS
MEMBER OF BAKER TILLY CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS 12221 MERIT DRIVE, SUITE 1400, DALLAS, TX 75251
INTERNATIONAL WWW.WEAVERLLP.COM P:(972) 490 1970 F:(972) 702 8321



Town of Highland Park

Page 2

We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion
on it.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming opinions on the basic financial statements taken
as a whole. The introductory section, combining and individual fund financial statements and
schedules, and statistical section as listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements of the Town. The
combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules have been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are
fairly stated, in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a
whole. The introductory and statistical information have not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and, accordingly we express
no opinion on such data.

Hotnn, cm st 2 otye

WEAVER AND TIDWELL, L.L.P.

Dallas, Texas
February 7, 2012
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

As management of the Town of Highland Park (“Town”), we offer readers of the Town’s financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2011. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional
information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages 3-6 of this report.

Financial Highlights

o The assets of the Town exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by
$72,519,353 (net assets). Of this amount, $21,261,294 (unrestricted net assets) may be
used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

e The Town's total net assets increased a total of $3,135,033, the result of operations.

o As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Town’s governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $16,930,278, a decrease of $1,395,317 in comparison with the prior
year. Approximately 24.4% of the reported combined ending fund balances, or $4,132,477, is
available for spending at the government's discretion (unassigned fund balance).

e At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was
$4,132,477 or 28.4% of total General Fund expenditures and the unrestricted net assets for
the Enterprise Fund was $3,303,622, or 41.4% of total Enterprise Fund operating expenses.

e Total governmental capital outlay of $4,299,049 was partially offset by the net gain from
operations of the General Fund of $1,866,648.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Town’s basic financial statements.
The Town'’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2)
fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements: The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the Town’s finances, in a manner similar to a private sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the Town’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the Town is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net assets changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in
this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes
and earned but unused vacation leave.)

The government-wide financial statements distinguish between governmental activities (i.e., functions of the
Town that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues) and business-type activities (i.e.,
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their cost through user fees and charges).
The governmental activities of the Town include general government, public safety, streets, library services and



parks and recreation. The business-type activities of the Town include the distribution and sale of treated water
and the collection and disposal of sewerage and solid waste.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 26-27 of this report.

Fund financial statements: A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the Town can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary
funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds: Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year.
Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it
is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented or
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental
fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental
activities.

The Town maintains seven individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
Governmental Funds Balance Sheet and in the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances for the General Fund and the Capital Projects Fund, which are considered to be
major funds. Data from the other five governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.
Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining
statements elsewhere in this report.

The Town adopts an annual appropriated budget for the General Fund and Capital Projects Fund. Budgetary
comparison statements are provided for each fund to demonstrate compliance with the budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 28-32 of this report.

Proprietary funds: The Town maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to
report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements.
The Town uses the enterprise fund to account for its distribution and sale of treated water and the collection and
disposal of sanitary and solid waste. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and
allocate costs internally among the Town'’s various functions. The Town uses an internal service fund to account
for its fleet of vehicles and management information systems. Because these services predominantly benefit
governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been included within governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in
more detail. The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 33-35 of this report.
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Notes to the financial statements: The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the
financial statements can be found on pages 37-58 of this report.

Other information: In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also
presents certain required supplementary information pertaining to the Town's funding of its obligation to provide
pension benefits to Town employees through the Texas Municipal Retirement System. Also included is a
budgetary comparison for the Capital Projects Fund, combining statements for the nonmajor governmental
funds and the schedule of changes in equipment and accumulated depreciation for the internal service fund.
This supplementary information may be found on pages 60 to 70.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. The
Town’s assets exceeded liabilities by $72,519,353 at the close of the most recent fiscal year.

Governmental Business-type Total
activities activities
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Currentand otherassets $ 21,737,970  $23,063,489 | $ 4456123 § 4192426 | $26,194,093  $27,255915
Capital assets 35,479,938 31,868,002 15,778,121 14,555,810 | 51,258,059 46,423,812

Total assets $ 57217908 $54,931491|$ 20234244 $18,748236| $77,452,152  $73,679,727
Current Liabilities 2,672,522 1,939,543 984,689 1,011,248 3,657,211 2,950,791
Long term liabilities 1,107,776 1,188,810 167,812 155,806 1,275,588 1,344,616

Total liabilities 3,780,298 3,128,353 1,152,501 1,167,054 4,932,799 4,295,407
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets 35,479,938 31,868,002 15,778,121 14,555,810 | 51,258,059 46,423,812
Unrestricted 17,957,672 19,935,136 3,303,622 3,025372 21,261,294 22,960,508

Total net assets $ 53437610 $51,803,138]$% 19,081,743 $17,581,182| $72,519,353  $69,384,320

The largest portion of the Town’s net assets (70.7%) is its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings,
machinery, and equipment). The Town uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently,
these assets are not available for future spending.

The remaining balance of $21,261,294, unrestricted net assets, may be used to meet the government's ongoing
obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net
assets, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type
activities. The same situation held true for the prior fiscal year.



Revenues:

Program revenues:
Charges for senices
Contributions

General Revenues:
Property taxes
Other taxes
Other

Total revenues

Expenses:
General government
Public safety
Streets
Street lighting
Library
Parks
Swimming pool
Municipal Court
Finance
Building inspection
Total expenses

Transfers In (Out)

Increase in net assets
Net assets 10/1
Net assets 9/30

Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Business-type Total
activities activities

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
$ 2,863,195 § 2660206 $ 9945105 |$ 8315859 | $ 12,808,300 $ 10,976,065
- 4,383 - - - 4,383
9,714,359 9,934,677 - - 9,714,359 9,934,677
3,717,739 3,540,365 - - 3,717,739 3,540,365
869,103 671,939 12,469 41,168 881,572 713,107
$17,164396 $16811570[§ 9,957,574 |§ 8,357,027 [ $27,121970 §$ 25,168,597
812,643 1,316,352 7,983,612 7,481,548 8,796,255 8,797,900
10,188,243 10,164,906 - -| 10,188,243 10,164,906
1,090,129 1,061,747 - - 1,090,129 1,061,747
284,966 307,312 - - 284,966 307,312
745,811 772,491 - - 745,811 772,491
1,404,315 1,431,268 - - 1,404,315 1,431,268
228,565 228,852 - - 228,565 228,852
341,435 343,042 - - 341,435 343,042
515,296 520,784 - - 515,296 520,784
391,922 539,980 - - 391,922 539,980
$16,003,325 $16,686,734 | § 7,983,612 [$§ 7,481,548 | $23,986,937 §$ 24,168,282
473,401 5,200,122 (473,401) (5,200,122) - -
1,634,472 5,324,958 1,500,561 (4,324,643) 3,135,033 1,000,315
51,803,138 46,478,180 17,581,182 21,905,825 | 69,384,320 68,384,005
$53,437,610 $51,803,138 [ § 19,081,743 |§ 17,581,182 [ $ 72,519,353  § 69,384,320

For the fiscal year 2011, the Town’s total net assets increased $3,135,033, the result of operations.
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Governmental activities: Governmental activities, excluding transfers, increased the Town’s net assets by
$1,161,071. This accounted for 37.0% of the total growth in the net assets of the Town from operations.

Total 2011 revenues increased by $352,826 (2.1%) from 2010. This increased was the combined result of a
decrease in property taxes of $230,318 due to lower taxable values, offset by: an increase in charges for
services of $202,989; an increase in sales taxes of $148,253; an increase in intergovernmental revenues of
$124,372; and an increase in miscellaneous revenues of $99,403.

Total expenses decreased $683,409 (4.1%) from 2010. In the prior year, Building Inspection professional
services were $164,360 higher due to third party inspections of a new facility at the Dallas Country Club.
General government expenses decreased $503,709, the combined result of:

e During 2010, the Town changed its policy for capitalizing library books. The book value of library books
of $309,711 was removed from capital assets and was included in general government expenses.

¢ Due to the retirement and reallocation of personnel, the accrual for personnel expenses related to long-
term compensated absences decreased $74,681.

e Operating income of the Equipment Replacement Fund increased $72,119, resulting in a decrease of
expenses.

Business-type activities: The revenue rate structures for business-type activities are developed with the
intent of generating resources sufficient to fund the cost of the respective service provided and for infrastructure
replacement and/or rehabilitation. Net assets from operations for business-type activities (excluding transfers
out) increased $1,973,962. Comparatively, the increase in the investment in business-type capital assets, net of
depreciation, increased $1,222,311 for the year.

Total business-type revenues for 2011 increased by $1,600,547 (19.2%) over 2010 revenues. Charges for
services increased by $1,629,246, the result of an increase in the volume of water sold of approximately 26%
and a rate increase to offset a 17.2% increase in the cost of treated water purchased for resale.

Transfers: Transactions of a significant nature that did not impact the Town’s total net assets involved
transfers made in conjunction with the prior year implementation of the Town’s first formal capital program.
During fiscal year 2010, a five-year Capital Improvement Plan was adopted and in order to consolidate the
Town’s resources for it, transfers in the amount of $473,401 were made from business-type activities to
governmental-type activities.
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Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds

As noted earlier, the Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements.

Governmental funds: The focus of the Town’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Town’s
financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a
government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Town’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $16,930,278, a decrease of $1,395,317 in comparison with the prior year. This decrease consists
of the net result of activities described below for each of the individual governmental funds.

Approximately 24.4% of total fund balance ($4,132,477) constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is available
for spending at the Town's discretion. The remainder of fund balance includes amounts not available for new
spending because it is 1) nonspendable and is for inventory and prepaid items ($27,813); 2) restricted for
special revenue funds and for use by the Library ($305,814); 3) committed for capital acquisition, stormwater
drainage improvements and employee disbursement ($8,676,585); or 4) assigned to liquidate contracts and
purchase orders of the prior period ($3,787,589).

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the Town. The total fund balance of the Town’s General
Fund increased by $270,864 during the current fiscal year; this was primarily the net result of (1) an excess of
revenues over expenditures of $1,866,648 (increase); (2) a budgeted transfer in the amount of $990,000 from
current revenues to the Capital Projects Fund (decrease); and (3) a transfer of $664,794 to the Capital Projects
Fund in accordance with the Town’s Financial Management Policies (decrease).

As a measure of the General Fund's liquidity, it is useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total
fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 28.4% of total General Fund
expenditures, while total fund balance represents 32.1% of that same amount.

The Capital Projects Fund ended the fiscal year with a total fund balance of $11,712,961, all committed or
assigned for capital acquisitions and projects. Of this amount, $8,330,542 is restricted for capital acquisition.
The total fund balance of the Capital Projects Fund decreased by $1,558,273 during the current fiscal year; this
was the net result of $2,096,450 in transfers from the General Fund ($1,623,049) and the Enterprise Fund
($473,401) and operations.

Proprietary funds: The Town’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets of the Town’s Enterprise Fund at the end of the year amounted to $3,303,622, an
increase of $278,250. Other factors concerning the finances of this fund have already been addressed in the
discussion of the Town’s business-type activities.
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The final amended budget was $51,837 less than the original budget. This was the net result of (1) the
reallocation of personnel expenses between the General Fund and Enterprise Fund of $73,974 (decrease); (2)
the purchase of a fire hose in the amount of $9,690 (increase); (3) the cost to repaint one of the Town’s MICU
units of $4,000 (increase); and (4) the purchase of eBooks for the Library in the amount of $8,447 (increase).

Actual fiscal year 2011 General Fund expenditures were $556,714 (3.7%) less than the final amended budget.
This variance was comprised of the following:

e Total personnel costs were $358,664 less than budget. This was due to Public Safety open positions
during parts of the year and employee health insurance costs being less than anticipated.

e Total supply costs were $165,815 less than budgeted, the result of department’s carefully monitoring
costs due to the uncertain economy.

Capital Assets

The Town’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities as of September 30,
2011 amounts to $51,258,059 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes
land, buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment, and park facilities. The net increase in the Town’s
investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was $4,834,247, or 10.4%.

Additional information on the Town'’s capital assets can be found in note 2 on pages 50-52 of this report.
Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

The preparation of the 2012 Operating Budget was significantly impacted by the current economic recession
and the effect that it has, and is having, on property values, housing starts, interest eamings and court
revenues. Significant factors considered in preparing the budget include:

e Taxable property values for 2012 decreased $54,544,220 (0.99%). Property tax revenues will be lower
due to the combination of the decrease in values and the decision to retain a tax rate of $0.22/$100
valuation.

e Sales taxes have increased $148,253 (6.1%) during 2011 over 2010, the result of stronger retail sales
within the Town. The Town is projecting sales tax revenue of $2,550,000 for the 2012 budget year, a
9.7% increase of the 2011 budget.

e Water sales have increased $1,378,622 (32.0%) during 2011 over 2010, the combined result
of an increase in water rates to offset costs and increased usage.
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Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town’s finances for all those with an
interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or
requests for additional financial information should be addressed to:

Town of Highland Park
Finance Department
4700 Drexel Drive
Highland Park TX 75205
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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TOWN OF HIGHLAND PARK
Statement of Net Assets
September 30, 2011

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments

Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles):

Internal Balances
Inventory of Supplies
Prepaid ltems
Total Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets
Capital Assets:

Land, Improvements and Construction in Progress
Other Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation

Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:

Vouchers Payable
Retainage Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Deposits
Noncurrent Liabilities Due Within One Year
Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due in More Than One Year

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total

$ 9,456,585 $ 945281 $ 10,401,866
11,067,337 1,653,457 12,720,794
1,171,200 1,770,002 2,941,202

15,035 (15,035) -
15,588 85,401 100,989
12,225 17,017 29,242
21,737,970 4,456,123 26,194,093
8,202,163 926,950 9,129,113
27,277,775 14,851,171 42,128,946
35,479,938 15,778,121 51,258,059
$ 57,217,908 $ 20,234,244 $77,452,152
$ 966,297 $ 549948 $ 1,516,245
84,142 - 84,142
1,333,550 242,152 1,575,702
46,046 171,986 218,032
242,487 20,603 263,090
2,672,522 984,689 3,657,211
1,107,776 167,812 1,275,588
3,780,298 1,152,501 4,932,799
35,479,938 15,778,121 51,258,059
17,957,672 3,303,622 21,261,294
$ 53,437,610 $ 19,081,743 $72,519,353

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF HIGHLAND PARK
Statement of Activities
For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011

Program Revenues Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets
Primary Government
Chargesfor ~ Operating Grants ~ Governmental ~ Business - Type
Functions/Programs Expenses Services And Contributions Activities Activities Total
Primary government:
Governmental Activities:
General Government $ 812643 $ 208091 $ - $ (604,552) $ - $ (604,552)
Department of Public Safety 10,188,243 741,602 - (9,446,641) (9,446,641)
Street Department 1,090,129 120,887 - (969,242) (969,242)
Street Lighting Department 284,966 - - (284,966) (284,966)
Library 745,811 16,001 - (729,810) (729,810)
Parks Depariment 1,404,315 10,360 - (1,393,955) (1,393,955)
Swimming Pool 228,565 109,959 - (118,606) (118,606)
Municipal Court 341,435 728,149 - 386,714 386,714
Finance Department 515,296 - - (515,296) (515,296)
Building Inspection Department 391,922 928,146 - 536,224 536,224
Total governmental activities 16,003,325 2,863,195 (13,140,130) (13,140,130)
Business-type activites:
Enterprise 7,983,612 9,945,105 1,961,493 1,961,493
Total business-type activiies 7,983,612 9,945,105 - 1,961,493 1,961,493
Total primary government $ 23986937 $12808,300 $ $ (13,140,130) $ 1961493  $(11,178,637)
General Revenues:
Property Taxes $ 9714359 § - $ 9,714,359
Sales Taxes 2,579,028 - 2,579,028
Other Taxes 127,969 127,969
Franchise Taxes 1,010,742 1,010,742
Penalfies and Intereston Taxes 55,505 - 55,505
Interest on Investments 108,877 12,469 121,346
Intergovernmental 211,751 - 211,751
Miscellaneous 492,970 - 492,970
Transfers 473,401 (473,401) -
Total general revenues and transfers 14,774,602 (460,932) 14,313,670
Change in Net Assets 1,634,472 1,500,561 3,135,033
Net Assets - Beginning of Year 51,803,138 17,581,182 69,384,320
NetAssets - End of Year § 53437610 § 19,081,743 $ 72,519,353

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF HIGHLAND PARK
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
September 30, 2011

Total
Capital Governmental
General Projects Non-Major Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $2324909 § 5510258 § 536,901 § 8,372,068
Investments 3,015,427 7,020,645 - 10,036,072
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles)-
Interest 3,307 21,690 - 24,997
Taxes 881,158 - - 881,158
Other 104,406 - 13,589 117,995
Fines 144,078 - - 144,078
Due From Other Funds 15,035 - - 15,035
Inventory of Supplies 15,588 - - 15,588
Prepaid ltems 12,127 - 98 12,225
Total Assets $6516,035 § 12552593 § 550588 § 19,619,216
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Vouchers Payable $ 1372717 % 755876 §$ 610 § 893,763
Retainage Payable 386 83,756 - 84,142
Accrued Liabilities 1,332,455 - 1,095 1,333,550
Deposits 46,046 - - 46,046
Deferred Revenue
Property T axes 155,829 - - 155,829
Ambulance 31,530 - - 31,530
Fines 144,078 - - 144,078
Total Liabilities 1,847,601 839,632 1,705 2,688,938
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Inventory of Supplies 15,588 - - 15,588
Prepaid ltems 12,127 - 98 12,225
Restricted
Crime Prevention - - 494 494
Court Technology - - 46,159 46,159
Court Security - - 145,219 145,219
Library 113,942 - - 113,942
Committed
Capital Acquisition - 8,330,542 - 8,330,542
Stormwater Drainage Improvements - 343,665 343,665
Employee Christmas Fund - - 2,378 2,378
Assigned
Capital Projects - 3,382,419 - 3,382,419
Drainage - - 10,870 10,870
Other 394,300 - - 394,300
Unassigned 4132 477 - - 4132 477
Total Fund Balances 4,668,434 11,712,961 548,883 16,930,278

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances ~ $6,516,035 $§ 12552593 § 550588 § 19,619,216

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



TOWN OF HIGHLAND PARK
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the
Statement of Net Assets

Total fund balances -- governmental funds $16,930,278

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets (page 26)
are different because:

Capital assets of $54,257,497 net of accumulated depreciation of $18,777,559 used in
governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not reported as
assets in governmental funds. 35,479,938

Revenues have been recognized in the government-wide financial statements but are
deferred as liabilities at the fund level as follows:

Property Taxes $155,829
Ambulance Fees 31,530
Court Fines 144,078
331,437
Long term liabilities related to compensated absences are recognized on the government-
wide financial statements and not at the fund level. (1,036,409)
Long term liabilities related to other post employment benefits are recognized on the
government-wide financial statements and not at the fund level. (313,854)
An internal service fund is used by the Town's management:
The assets and liabilities of the internal senice fund are included with governmental
activities. The net property of $2,789,997 as it relates to the internal senice funds
is included in the capital asset amount above. 2,046,220
$53,437,610

Total Net Assets--governmental activities (page 26)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF HIGHLAND PARK

Governmental Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011

REVENUES
Property T axes
Sales Taxes
Other Taxes
Franchise Fees
Penalties and Interest
Licenses and Permits
Senice Fees
Fines and Forfeits
Interest on Investments
Intergovernmental
Contributions

Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current-

General Government
Department of Public Safety
Street Department
Street Lighting Department
Library
Parks Department
Swimming Pool
Municipal Court
Finance Department
Building Inspection Department

Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In
Transfers Out

Proceeds from Sale of Assets
Net Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances
FUND BALANCES, beginning of year
FUND BALANCES, end of year

Total
Capital Governmental

General Projects Non-Major Funds
$ 9720303 % - % - $ 9,720,303
2,579,028 - - 2,579,028
127,969 - - 127,969
1,010,742 - - 1,010,742
55,505 - - 55,505
1,008,939 - - 1,008,939
1,204,482 - 234,925 1,439,407
366,991 - - 366,991
33,301 60,257 1,564 95,122
- 211,751 - 211,751
75,593 - 18,315 93,908
220,573 - 238 220,811
16,403,426 272,008 255,042 16,930,476
638,616 - 129,616 768,232
9,828,167 - - 9,828,167
350,868 - - 350,868
264,445 - - 264,445
609,131 - - 609,131
1,297,955 - - 1,297,955
198,620 - - 198,620
291,393 - - 291,393
507,215 - - 507,215
391,807 - - 391,807
158,561 3,926,731 213,757 4,299,049
14,536,778 3,926,731 343,373 18,806,882
1,866,648 (3,654,723) (88,331) (1,876,406)
31,322 2,096,450 - 2,127,772
(1,634,794) - (19,577) (1,654,371)
7,688 - - 7,688
(1,595,784) 2,096,450 (19,577) 481,089
270,864 (1,558,273)  (107,908) (1,395,317)
4,397,570 13,271,234 656,791 18,325,595
$ 4668434 § 11,712,961 $548883 $ 16,930,278

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF HIGHLAND PARK
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (page 27)
are different because:

Net changes in fund balances--total governmental funds $(1,395,317)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement
of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays
($4,299,049) exceeded depreciation ($1,349,537) in the current period. 2,949,512

Revenues in the statement of activities reported on the accrual method differ from
amounts reported at the fund level on the modified accrual basis as follows:

Property T axes (5,944)
Ambulance Fees 47 858
41914
Expenditures related to the long-term liability for other post employment benefits are
recognized in the government-wide financial statements. (120,096)
Expenditures related to the long-term liability for compensated absences are
recognized in the government-wide financial statements. (41,357)
Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities,
such as the purchase of equipment, to individual funds. The net revenue (expense)
of the internal service fund is reported with governmental activities. 199,816
Change in net assets of governmental activities (page 27) $ 1,634,472

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF HIGHLAND PARK

General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the year ended September 30, 2011

REVENUES
Property T axes
Sales Taxes
Other Taxes
Franchise Fees
Penalties and Interest
Licenses and Permits
Senvice Fees
Fines and Forfeits
Interest on Investments
Intergovernmental
Contributions

Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current-
General Government
Department of Public Safety
Street Department
Street Lighting Department
Library
Parks Department
Swimming Pool
Municipal Court
Finance Department
Building Inspection Department

Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In
Transfers Out

Sale of Assets
Net Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Financing
Sources Over Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

FUND BALANCES, beginning of year
FUND BALANCES, end of year

Variance -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts  (Negative)
$ 9688985 § 9688985 $9,720,303 § 31318
2,325,000 2,325,000 2,579,028 254,028
100,000 100,000 127,969 27,969
990,000 990,000 1,010,742 20,742
60,000 60,000 55,505 (4,495)
881,325 881,325 1,008,939 127,614
1,128,000 1,128,000 1,204,482 76,482
371,000 371,000 366,991 (4,009)
60,100 60,100 33,301 (26,799)
4,500 4,500 - (4,500)
5,000 5,000 75,593 70,593
250,500 250,500 220,573 (29,927)
15,864,410 15,864,410 16,403,426 539,016
650,230 775,640 638,616 137,024
10,007,615 10,021,305 9,828,167 193,138
389,785 389,785 350,868 38,917
306,110 306,110 264,445 41,665
641,650 650,097 609,131 40,966
1,421,505 1,315,035 1,297,955 17,080
237,135 237,135 198,620 38,515
307,950 307,950 291,393 16,557
541,015 541,015 507,215 33,800
351,820 362,580 391,807 (29,227)
186,840 186,840 158,561 28,279
15,041,655 15,093,492 14,536,778 556,714
822,755 770,918 1,866,648 1,095,730
31,745 31,745 31,322 (423)
(990,000) (1,634,794)  (1,634,794) -
3,500 3,500 7,688 4,188
(954,755) (1,599,549)  (1,595,784) 3,765
(132,000) (828,631) 270,864 1,099,495
4,397,570 4,397,570 4,397,570 -
$ 4265570 $ 3568939 $4668434 $1,099495

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF HIGHLAND PARK
Proprietary Funds
Statement of Net Assets
September 30, 2011

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles)-
Water, Sewer and Garbage-
Billed
Unbilled
Interest
Inventory of Supplies
Prepaid Iltems

Total Current Assets

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

CAPITAL ASSETS
Land
Buildings
Improvements Other Than Buildings
Vehicles and Rolling Stock
Machinery and Equipment
Office Furniture and Equipment
Construction in Progress

Less Accumulated Depreciation

Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities-

Vouchers Payable

Retainage Payable

Accrued Liabilities

Deposits

Due to other funds
Compensated absences- current

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities
OPEB
Compensated absences
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities
NET ASSETS

Invested in Capital Assets
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

Business-Type
Activities -
Enterprise Fund

Governmental
Activities - Internal
Service Funds

$ 945281  $ 1,084,517
1,653,457 1,031,265
1,314,726 -

453,425 -
1,851 2,972
85,401 -
17,017 -
4,471,158 2,118,754
238,750 -
20,197 -
20,828,674 -
- 4,291,422
697,410 1,580,577
36,038 -
688,200 56,726
22,509,269 5,928,725
(6,731,148) (3,138,728)
15,778,121 2,789,997
20,249,279 4,908,751
549,948 72,534
242,152 -
171,986 -
15,035
20,603 -
999,724 72,534
46,615 -
121,197 -
167,812 R
1,167,536 72,534
15,778,121 2,789,997
3,303,622 2,046,220
$ 19,081,743 4,836,217

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF HIGHLAND PARK
Proprietary Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
For the year ended September 30, 2011

Business-Type Governmental
Activities - Activities - Internal
Enterprise Fund Service Funds
OPERATING REVENUES
Water Sales $ 5,700,152 $ -
Sewer Services 2,745,623 -
Sanitation Senvices 1,257,603 -
New Connections 13,050 -
Plumbing Permits 33,320 -
Penalties for Late Payments 85,013 -
Inter-Departmental Water Sales 92,857 -
Charges for Services - 508,781
Miscellaneous 17 487 1,813
Total Operating Revenues 9,945,105 510,594
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel Senvices 2,092,714 -
Materials and Supplies 2,848,588 -
Senvices and Charges 2,453,659 8,570
Depreciation 588,651 484,713
Total Operating Expenses 7,983,612 493,283
Operating Income 1,961,493 17,311
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest 12,469 13,755
Gain on Sale of Assets - 66,032
Total Nonoperating Revenues 12,469 79,787
Income before Transfers and Capital Contributions 1,973,962 97,098
Transfers out (473,401) -
Contributions of Capital Assets from Government - 102,718
Change in Net Assets 1,500,561 199,816
NET ASSETS, beginning of year 17,581,182 4.636,401
NET ASSETS, end of year $ 19,081,743 $ 4,836,217

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from customers and users

Receipts frominterfund services provided

Cash payments to suppliers

Cash payments to employees

Net cash provided by operating activiies

TOWN OF HIGHLAND PARK

Proprietary Funds

Statement of Cash Flows
For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Transfers out

Net cash used for noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Acquisiion and construction of capital assets

Capital confributions

Net cash used for capital and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of investment securifies

Proceeds from sale and maturiies of investment securiies
Interestand dividends received on investments

Net cash provided by investing activities

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating Income

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by operating actvities:

Depreciation

Increase in inventory

Accounts receivable
Other assets

Accounts payable and accrued liabiliies

Due to other funds

Compensated absences payable
Other post-employment benefits

Deposits

Tofal adjustments

Net cash provided by operating activiiies

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND RELATED ACTIVITIES:

Contribution of capital assets from governmental activiies

The notes fo the financial stattments are an integral part of this statement.

Business-Type
Activities -
Enterprise Fund

Governmental
Activities - Internal
Service Funds

$ 9,608,315 $ 510,594
15,035 (41,520)
(5,361,829) (8,570)
(2,060,105) -
2,201,416 460,504
(473,401) -
(473,401) -
(1,810,962) (1,147,137)
(1,810,962) (1,147,137
(3,802,655) (1,798,620)
4,300,000 2,500,000
36,575 208,805
533,920 910,185
450,973 223,552
494,308 860,965
$ 945,281 $ 1,084,517
$ 1,961,493 $ 17,311
588,651 484,713
(1,316) -
(343,983) -
(3,911) -
(54,355) (41,520)
15,035
14,772 -
17,837 -
7,193 -
239,923 443,193
$ 2,201,416 $ 460,504
$ - $ 102,718
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TOWN OF HIGHLAND PARK
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

The accounting and reporting policies of the Town of Highland Park, Texas (the “Town”), relating to the financial
statements for the year ended September 30, 2011, conform to generally accepted accounting principles for
local governmental units. The more significant accounting policies are summarized below.

A. Reporting Entity

In defining the scope of the Town for financial reporting purposes, the Town conforms to the criteria of the
Government Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) Statement 14, “The Financial Reporting Entity” as amended
by GASB Statement 39, “Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units.” The Town’s basic
financial statements include all organizations and activities determined to be part of the Town’s reporting entity.
No other governmental organizations are includable within the Town’s reporting entity.

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities)
report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the Town. For the most part, the effect of interfund
activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by
taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a sig-
nificant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segments are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific
function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or
segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as
general revenues.

Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial
statements.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable
and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or
soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the Town considers revenues to
be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally
are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as
well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when
payment is due.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period.
All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the Town.

The Town uses funds to report on its financial position and the results of its operations. Fund accounting is
designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by segregating transactions related
to certain government functions or activities. A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of
accounts.

The Town reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Town. It is used to account for all
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for the acquisition and construction
of major capital facilities other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust funds.

The Town reports the following non-major governmental funds:

Special Revenue Funds - The Town’s Special Revenue Funds are used to account for revenue sources
that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

Stormwater Drainage Fund — Accounts for the collection of fees to protect the public health and
safety from loss of life and property caused by surface water overflows, surface water stagnation
and pollution arising from non-point source runoff within the Town.

Employee Christmas Fund - The Employee Christmas Fund accounts for the collection of
unsolicited contributions of citizens and the distribution to the Town’s employees.

Forfeited Property Fund - The Forfeited Property Fund accounts for the receipt of forfeited assets
as a result of criminal activities and the funding of crime prevention programs and equipment.

Court Technology Fund - Accounts for the Municipal Court technology fee charged to defendants
as specified by state law.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Court Security Fund — Accounts for the Municipal Court security fee charged to defendants as
specified by state law.

The Town reports the following major proprietary funds:

Enterprise Fund - The Town’s Enterprise Fund is used to account for operations of the Town’s sale of
treated water and the disposal of sewage and solid waste for its citizens.

Additionally, the government reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Fund — The Internal Service Fund is used to account for the financing of goods or
services provided by one department to other departments within the Town. The Equipment
Replacement Fund is used to account for the acquisition and disposal of vehicles and large dollar
equipment for the Town.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are
followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those
standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the GASB. Governments also have the option of
following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to
this same limitation. The Town has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the Town's water and sewer function and
various other functions of the Town and charges of the internal service funds to the water and sewer funds.
Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various
functions concerned.

Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided, 2)
operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions, including special assessments.
Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise,
general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Enterprise Fund and of
the Town’s Internal Service Funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for
Enterprise Funds and Internal Service Funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses,
and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
nonoperating revenues and expenses.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Town’s policy to use restricted
resources first, then unrestricted resources, as they are needed.

D. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The Town’s general policies and procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements are described below.

1.

10.

40

The Town Administrator acts as budget officer and prepares a proposed budget covering the
expenditures of the Town in accordance with the provisions of the Town Charter.

A copy of the proposed budget is filed in the office of the Town Secretary no less than 30 days prior
to the end of the fiscal year in accordance with provisions of the Town Charter. The 2010-2011
proposed budget was filed on August 22, 2010.

A public hearing is conducted at a regular Town Council meeting to obtain citizen comments.

Notice of a public hearing relating to budget adoption is duly advertised by the Town Secretary in
accordance with the provision of Vernon's Annotated Civil Statutes. The 2010-2011 budget hearing
was held on September 12, 2010.

Prior to September 30, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance. The 2010-
2011 budget was approved September 12, 2010 through passage of Ordinance No. 1803.

Amendments to the budget are made at regularly scheduled Town Council meetings with notice of
public hearing posted three days prior to the meeting.

The Town’s budget is a line-item budget. Overall control is the responsibility of the Town
Administrator with each respective department head being responsible for the administration of their
departmental budgets. The department head has the flexibility of transferring appropriations between
line items within the department as long as the total departmental appropriations are not exceeded.
The exception to this policy is that no recognized salary or capital budgetary savings can be
transferred without prior authorization of the Town Administrator.

Encumbrances outstanding at the end of the year that the Town intends to pay during the next year
are appropriated in next year's budgeted expenditures as appropriations expire at year-end.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the current year
for the General Fund, Enterprise Fund, and Equipment Replacement Fund (Internal Service Fund).

The legally adopted budget for the General Fund and Capital Projects Fund are adopted on the
modified accrual basis of accounting as described in Note 1.C. Budgeted amounts are as amended.



TOWN OF HIGHLAND PARK
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Amendments to the General Fund budget were not material to the original appropriations.
Expenditures in excess of the budget may occur within individual expenditure accounts without Town
Council approval. The Town Council must approve all expenditures in excess of the budget on a
departmental basis.

11. The legally adopted budgets for the Enterprise Fund and Internal Service Funds are adopted on a
basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (‘GAAP”), except that capital outlays
are treated as expenses.

E. Deposits, Investments and Investment Policies

The Town’s management of deposits and investments are directed by its Statement of Investment Policies
(“Policies™), adopted by the Town Council. The Policies are in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas,
where applicable. The Policies identify authorized investments and investment terms, collateral requirements,
safekeeping requirements for collateral and investments and certain investment practices. Authorized
investments include obligations of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities, excluding mortgage-
backed securities, direct obligations of the State of Texas or its agencies and instrumentalities, collateralized
certificates of deposit, eligible local government investment pools and money market mutual funds meeting
specific conditions. Repurchase agreements, reverse purchase agreements, bankers acceptances and
commercial paper are also authorized to the extent that they may be contained in the portfolios of approved
local government investment pools. Though authorized for a variety of investment instruments, the Town
invests solely in United States Agency Securities and two (2) local government investment pools. Investments
are held until maturity or until market values equal or exceed cost.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, the Town’s participating investments with a remaining maturity at
time of purchase of less than one year and non-participating investments are reported utilizing a cost base
measure. Participating investments with a remaining maturity at date of purchase of more than one year are
reported at fair value.

In applying GASB Statement No. 31, the Town utilizes the following methods and assumptions:

1) Fair value is based on quoted market prices as of the valuation date;
2) The portfolio did not hold investments in any of the following:

a) Items required to be reported at amortized cost,

b) Items in external pools that are not SEC-registered,

c) Items subject to involuntary participation in an external pool,

d) Items associated with a fund other than the fund to which the income is assigned;

3) Any unrealized gain/loss resulting from the valuation is recognized in the respective funds that
participate in the Town’s investment pool;
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

4) The gain/loss resulting from valuation is reported within the revenue account “investment income” on
the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances for the Governmental
Funds and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Retained Earnings for Proprietary
Funds.

The Town’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term
investments with original maturity of three (3) months or less from the date of acquisition.

The Town’s carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents as of September 30, 2011, as reflected in the
financial statements, is:

Governmental and
Business-Type

Activities
Cash/Demand Deposits $ 1,232,512
Investment Pools 9,169,354
Total $ 10,401,866

The Town’s deposits are fully collateralized with securities pledged to the Town and held in the Town’s name by
Frost National Bank. The fair value of these securities at year-end was $9,169,354. The bank balance at year-
end was $1,365,269.

The Town’s investments are categorized to give an indication of the level of risk assumed at year-end.
Category 1 included U.S. government and federal agency securities that are held by the Town'’s agent in the
Town’s name. The Town had no Category 2 or Category 3 investments.

Carrying Fair
Value Value
Federal Agency Securities $ 12471794 $ 12471794
Certificate of deposit 249,000 249,000
Investment Pools (included as cash and cash equivalents
per combined balance sheet) 9,169,354 9,169,354
Total Investments $ 21890148 $ 21,890,148
Maturities at September 30, 2011, were as follows:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 9,169,354
3 months to 2 years 12,720,794
Total $ 21,890,148
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
The table below identifies the investment types that are allowed for the Town by the Public Funds Investment
Act (Government Code Chapter 2265.) The table also identifies certain provisions of the Town’s investment

policy that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.

Maximum Maximum
Maximum Percentage Investment

Authorized Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio In One Issuer
U. S. Treasury Obligations 3 Years 100% None
U.S. Government Agency Securities and Instruments
of Government-Sponsored Corporations 3 Years 80% None
Authorized Local Government Investment Pool (per Pool) 3 Years 25% None
Fully Collateralized Certificates of Deposit 3 Years 25% 50%
SEC-Regulated No-Load Money Market Mutual Fund (per Fund) 3 Years 25% 50%

The Town maintains a comprehensive and proactive cash management program which is designed to monitor
and control all Town funds to ensure maximum utilization and yield a market rate of return. The basic and
underlying strategy of this program is that all the Town’s funds are earning interest. The Town’s investment
strategy emphasizes low credit risk, diversification, and the management of maturities.

The Act also requires the Town to have independent auditors perform test procedures related to investment
practices as provided by the Act. The Town is in substantial compliance with the requirements of the Act and
with local policies.

Interest rate risk - In accordance with its investment policy, the Town manages its exposure to declines in fair

values by limiting the weighted average maturity of its investment portfolio to 270 days. As of September 30,
2011, the Town did not invest in any securities which are highly sensitive to interest rate fluctuations.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Credit Risk - Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the
holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical
rating organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the Public Funds
Investment Act, the Town’s investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of year end for each
investment type. As of September 30, 2011, the Town had the following investments:

Weighted Minimum Rating as

Average Legal of Year
Investment Type Amount Maturity  Rating End

LOGIC $ 9,169,354 53 Days AAA AAAM
Cerficates of deposit 249,000 364 Days N/A N/A
U. S. Government Securities:

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation  $4,267,827 AA+

Federal Home Loan Bank 4.170,972 AA+

Federal National Mortgage Association 2,032,495 AA+

Federal Farm Credit Bank 2,000,500 AA+

Total U.S. Government Securities 12,471,794 253 Days

Total Primary Government $21,890,148

Concentration of credit risk - Diversification of investment instruments shall be utilized to avoid incurring
unreasonable risks resulting from over-concentration of investments in a specific maturity, a specific issue, or a
specific class of securities. With the exception of U.S. Government securities (debt obligations issued by the
U.S. Government, its agencies, or instrumentalities) as authorized in the Town’s investment policy, no more
than 50% of the total investment portfolio will be invested in any one security type or with a single financial
institution.  Diversification of the portfolio considers diversification by maturity dates and diversification by
investment instrument.

Custodial credit risk - deposits — Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a
depository financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The Texas Government Code, Section 2257,
collateral for Public Funds establishes the requirement of and the criteria for securing deposited public funds.
The Town’s investment policy further defines eligible securities acceptable for securing Town deposits at a level
equal to at least 102% of deposits plus any accrued interest less any amount insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation. As of September 30, 2011, the Town’s deposits with its financial institution in excess of
federal depository insurance limits were fully collateralized.

44



TOWN OF HIGHLAND PARK
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Custodial credit risk — investments — The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the
failure of the counterparty to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment
or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. The Town avoids custodial credit risk on
investments through its investment policy which further limits eligible instruments for investments of public
funds. As of September 30, 2011, the Town had no custodial credit risk on its investments.

Investment in State Investment Pools - During the year the Town invested in two public funds investment pools
(LOGIC and TexPool). Investments in these pools are not categorized in accordance with GASB Statement No.
3 disclosure requirements since the Town has not issued certificates, but rather it owns an individual beneficial
interest in the net assets of the related investment pools. The fair values of the position of the pools are
designed to approximate the share value.

LOGIC - LOGIC'S governing body is a six-member board of directors comprised of individuals who are
employees, officers, or elected officials of participants in the fund or who do not have a business relationship
with the fund and are qualified to advise. A maximum of two advisory board members will supplement the board
and will be employees or members of the firm providing managerial services to the fund and will represent the
general manager of the fund. LOGIC is administered by First Southwest Asset Management, Inc. and JP
Morgan Chase.
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F. Receivables

Receivables as of year end, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Capital Internal
General Projects Nonmajor  Enterprise  Service Total
Receivables:
Water, sewer and garbage
Billed $ - $ - 8 - % 1324815 § - § 1324815
Unbilled - 13,589 453,425 - 467,014
Interest 3307 21,690 - 1,851 2,972 29,820
Property Taxes 175,232 - - - - 175,232
Sales Taxes 434,735 - - - - 434,735
Mixed Beverage Taxes 32,323 - - - - 32,323
Franchise Taxes 255,286 - - - - 255,286
Other 147,781 - - - - 147,781
Fines and Forfeitures 144,078 - - - - 144,078
Gross receivables 1,192,742 21,690 13,589 1,780,091 2,972 3,011,084
Less: allowance for
uncollectibles (59,793) - - (10,089) - (69,882)
Net total receivables $1132949 $ 21690 $ 13589 $ 1770002 $ 2972 $ 2,941,202

G. Inventories of Supplies

Inventories of supplies are stated at cost (first-in, first-out) and are determined by physical count. Inventory item
expenditures are recognized when used under the consumption method.

H.  Prepaid ltems
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid
in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The Town uses the consumption method in the
governmental funds.

l. Property, Plant and Equipment

Capital assets, which include property, plant, and equipment, are reported in the applicable governmental or
business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the
Town as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two
years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost when determinable, or estimated historic costs based on
appraisals or other acceptable methods. Gifts or contributions of property and equipment are recorded at fair
market value at time of receipt. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the
asset or materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.
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Property, plant, and equipment of the Town, is depreciated using the straight line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings 50
Improvements Other Than Buildings 12-20
Machineryand Equipment 5-20
Office Furniture and Equipment 10
Computer Equipment 3-5
Police Sedans 1-2
Pickups/Small Trucks 5
Medium/Heavy Trucks 6-7
Fire Apparatus 15

J. Accumulated Unpaid Compensated Absences

It is the Town’s policy to permit employees to accumulate certain earned but unused vacation, comp time, and
sick pay benefits. Accumulated personnel leave is accrued in the Enterprise Fund as current liabilities based
upon unpaid amounts as of September 30, 2011, that must be paid by December 31, 2011, and amounts that
become vested as of September 30, 2011, that must be paid within a one-year period. Otherwise, remaining
amounts that have been earned but are not expected to be paid within a one-year period are included as long-
term liabilities in the Enterprise Fund and in the government-wide statements.

K. Encumbrances

Encumbrances outstanding at the end of the year are not included in the expenditures of the General Fund.
Assigned fund balance is established and a budget reappropriation made for those amounts the Town intends
to pay during the next year applicable to next year's budget appropriations.

L. Fund Balance

The Town has adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Government
Fund Type Definitions. The objective of the statement is to enhance the usefulness of fund balance information
by providing clearer fund balance classifications that can be more consistently applied and by clarifying the
existing government fund type definitions. The statement establishes fund balance classifications that comprise
a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which a government is bound to observe constraints imposed upon
the use of the resources reported in governmental funds. Fund balance classifications, under GASB 54 are
Nonspendable, Restricted, Committed, Assigned, and Unassigned. These classifications reflect not only the
nature of funds, but also provide clarity to the level of restriction placed upon fund balance. Fund balance can
have different levels of constraint, such as external versus internal compliance requirements. Unassigned fund
balance is a residual classification within the General Fund. The General Fund should be the only fund that
reports a positive unassigned balance. In all other funds, unassigned is limited to negative residual fund
balance.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
L. Fund Balance - continued
In accordance with GASB 54, the Town classifies governmental fund balances as follows:

Nonspendable -- includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable form, or, for
legal or contractual reasons, must be kept intact. This classification includes inventories and prepaid items.

Restricted -- includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes which are externally
imposed by providers, such as creditors or amounts restricted due to constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation. This classification includes retirement of long term debt, construction programs, and other federal
and state grants.

Committed -- includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes that are internally
imposed by the Town through formal action of the highest level of decision making authority. Committed fund
balance is reported pursuant to resolution passed by the Town Council.

Assigned -- includes fund balance amounts that are self-imposed by the Town to be used for a particular
purpose. Fund balance can be assigned by the Town’s Council or the Director of Fiscal and Human Resources.
This classification includes insurance deductibles, encumbrances, program start-up costs, projected budget
deficit for subsequent years and other legal uses.

Unassigned -- includes residual positive fund balance within the General Fund which has not been classified
within the other above mentioned categories. Unassigned fund balance may also include negative balances for
any governmental fund if expenditures exceed amounts restricted, committed, or assigned for those specific
purposes.

When multiple categories of fund balance are available for expenditure, the Town will start with the most
restricted category and spend those funds first before moving down to the next category with available funds.

Minimum Fund Balance Policy -- It is the policy of the Town to achieve and maintain an unassigned fund
balance in the General Fund equal to 22% of estimated revenue for the current Annual Budget.

M.  Property Tax

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property located in the Town as of January 1. Taxes are levied
on October 1 and are due and payable on or before January 31 of the following year. The Town bills and
collects its own property taxes. The property tax revenues are recognized when levied to the extent that they
result in current receivables under policies as described in Note 1.C. The tax rate for the current year was
$0.22 on each $100 of assessed valuation.
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N.  Expenditure Allocations

The expenditures of the service center and municipal building departments of the General Fund are allocated to
other departments (in both General and Enterprise Funds) of the Town based upon actual usage and
percentage usage calculations for each department. These reallocations to the Enterprise Fund amounted to
$15,249 of service center expenditures and $13,504 of municipal building expenditures during fiscal year 2011.

The Finance Department also allocates 30% of its expenditures to the Enterprise Fund. The reallocation of
Finance Department expenditures to the Enterprise Fund amounted to $211,805.
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TOWN OF HIGHLAND PARK
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2011 was as follows:

50

General Capital Assets:
Capital Assets, not Being Depreciated:

Land

Work in Progress

Total General Capital Assets, not being Depreciated
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:

Buildings

Capital Improvements

Furniture and Fixtures

Office Equipment

Machinery and Equipment

Total General Capital Assets Being Depreciated

Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Buildings

Capital Improvements

Fumniture and Fixtures

Office Equipment

Machinery and Equipment

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total General Capital Assets Being Depreciated, net

Internal Service Fund Capital Assets:
Capital Assets, not Being Depreciated:
Work in Progress

Total General Capital Assets, not being Depreciated
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:

Machinery and Equipment

Vehicles

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated

Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Machinery and Equipment
Vehicles

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, net

Total Governmental Activities
Governmental Activities Capital Assets

Not Being Depreciated

Governmental Activities Capital Assets
Being Depreciated, net

Beginning Ending

Balance Increases Decreases Balance
$ 4193026 $ -3 - § 4193026
872,426 3,826,243 (746,258) 3,952,411
5,065,452 3,826,243 (746,258) 8,145,437
5,019,716 - - 5,019,716
32,114,247 1,217,680 - 33,331,927
58,287 - - 58,287
256,613 1,384 (30,956) 227,041
1,546,364 - - 1,546,364
38,995,227 1,219,064 (30,956) 40,183,335
(673,443) (101,076) - (774,519)
(12,422,959) (1,156,945) - (13,579,904)
(51,149) (7,138) - (58,287)
(250,654) (7,343) 30,956 (227,041)
(922,045) (77,035) - (999,080)
(14,320,250) (1,349,537) 30,956 (15,638,831)
24,674,977 (130,473) - 24,544,504
50,000 56,726 (50,000) 56,726
50,000 56,726 (50,000) 56,726
1,608,300 118,033 (145,756) 1,580,577
3,470,494 1,062,640 (241,712) 4,291,422
5,078,794 1,180,673 (387,468) 5,871,999
(1,387,946) (145,043) 146,585 (1,386,404)
(1,613,275) (339,670) 200,621 (1,752,324)
(3,001,221) (484,713) 347,206 (3,138,728)
2,077,573 695,960 (40,262) 2,733,271
$ 5115452 § 3882969 $§ (796258) $§ 8,202,163
$ 26752550 $ 565487 §  (40,262) $ 27,277,775
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2.CAPITAL ASSETS - continued
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases  Decreases Balance
Business-type Activities:
Capital Assets, not Being Depreciated:
Land $ 238750 $ - 93 - § 238750
Work in Progress 774,148 688,200 (774,148) 688,200
Total Capital Assets, not Being Depreciated 1,012,898 688,200 (774,148) 926,950
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:
Buildings 20,197 - - 20,197
Improvements Other than Building 18,995,169 1,833,505 - 20,828,674
Machinery and Equipment 653,785 43,625 - 697,410
Office Furniture and Equipment 23,058 19,780 (6,800) 36,038
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 19,692,209 1,896,910 (6,800) 21,582,319
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Buildings (20,195) - - (20,195)
Capital Improvements (5,292,908) (543,750) - (5,836,658)
Machinery and Equipment (268,811) (44,901) - (313,712
Office Furniture and Equipment (22,017) - 6,800 (15,217)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (6,149,297) (588,651) 6,800 (6,731,148)
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, net $ 13,542,912 $ 1,308,259 $ - $ 14,851,171

Business-Type Activities Capital Assets, net ~ § 14,555,810 § 1,996,459 § (774,148) $ 15,778,121




TOWN OF HIGHLAND PARK
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011
2. CAPITAL ASSETS - continued

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General Government $ 140,969
Department of Public Safety 205,437
Street Department 775,546
Street Lighting Department 36,776
Library 71,312
Parks Department 69,080
Swimming Pool 31,756
Municipal Court 18,661
Total Depreciation Expense - General Capital Assets 1,349,537
Internal Service Fund 484,713
Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities $ 1,834,250
Business-type Activities:
Water $ 338515
Sewer 250,136
Total Depreciation Expense - Business-type Activities $ 588,651

3. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

During the fiscal year 2010, a five-year Capital Improvement Plan was adopted and in order to consolidate the
Town’s resources for it, transfers in the amount of $2,141,388 were made from business-type activities to
governmental-type activities. Individual fund transfers for the fiscal year 2011 were as follows:

Transfer In:
Capital General
Transfer Out: Projects Fund Fund Total Purpose of Transfer
General Fund $ 1634794 § - $1,634,794  Funding of Capital Improvement Plan
Utility Fund 461,656 11,745 473,401  Funding of Capital Improvement Plan
Nonmajor Funds - 19,577 19,577 Municipal Court Security
Total $ 2096450 $§ 31,322 $2,127,772

52



TOWN OF HIGHLAND PARK
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011
4. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term liability activity for the year ended September 30, 2011, was as follows:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Increases  Decreases Balance One Year

Governmental activities:
Compensated absences $ 995052 § 60911 § (19,554) $1,036,409 § 242487

OPERB liability 193,758 120,096 - 313,854
Governmental activity
Long-term liabilities $1,188810 § 181,007 § (19,554) $1,350,263 § 242487

Business-type activities:
Compensated absences $ 127028 § 68404 § (63004) $ 141800 $ 20,603

OPEB liability 28,778 17,837 - 46,615
Business-type activity
Long-term liabilities $ 155806 $ 86241 § (63004) $ 188415 §$ 20,603

The compensated absences liability, net pension obligation, and net other post employment benefit obligation
attributable to the governmental activities will be liquidated by the General Fund.

5. RETIREMENT PLANS

Texas Municipal Retirement System

Plan Description

The Town provides pension benefits for all of its eligible employees through a non-traditional, joint contributory,
hybrid defined benefit plan in the state-wide Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS), an agent multiple-
employer public employee retirement system. The plan provisions that have been adopted by the Town are
within the options available in the governing state statutes of TMRS.

TMRS issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information (RSI) for TMRS; the report also provides detailed explanations of the
contributions, benefits and actuarial methods and assumptions used by the System. This report may be
obtained by writing to TMRS, P.O. Box 149153, Austin, TX 78714-9153 or by calling 800-924-8677; in addition,
the report is available on TMRS' website at www.TMRS.com.
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TOWN OF HIGHLAND PARK
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

5. RETIREMENT PLANS - continued

The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body of the Town, within the options available in the state
statutes governing TMRS. Plan provisions for the Town were as follows:

Plan Year 2010 Plan Year 2011

Employee depositrate 7% 7%
Matching ration (Town to employee) 2101 2t01
Years required for vesting 5 5
Senvice requirement eligibility 60/5, 0/20 60/5, 0/20

(expressed as age/years of service)
Updated Senice Credit 0.0% 0.0%
Annuity Increase (to retirees) 0% of CPI 0% of CPI

Contributions

Under the state law governing TMRS, the contribution rate for each Town is determined annually by the actuary,
using the Projected Unit Credit actuarial cost method. This rate consists of the normal cost contribution rate and
the prior service cost contribution rate, which is calculated to be a level percent of payroll from year to year. The
normal cost contribution rate finances the portion of an active member's projected benefit allocated annually; the
prior service contribution rate amortizes the unfunded (overfunded) actuarial liability (asset) over the applicable
period for that Town. Both the normal cost and prior service contribution rates include recognition of the
projected impact of annually repeating benefits, such as Updated Service Credits and Annuity Increases.

The Town contributes to the TMRS Plan at an actuarially determined rate. Both the employees and the Town
make contributions monthly. Since the Town needs to know its contribution rate in advance for budgetary
purposes, there is a one-year delay between the actuarial valuation that serves as the basis for the rate and the
calendar year when the rate goes into effect. The annual pension cost and net pension obligation/ (asset) are as
follows:

September 30
2009 2010 2011
Annual Required Contribution (ARC) $ 1405510 $ 1,365,088 $ 1,304,409
Annual Pension Cost $ 1,405,510 $ 1,365,088 $ 1,304,409
Contributions Made $(1405510)  $(1,365,088)  $(1,304,409)
Change in Net Pension Obligation (NPO)  $ $ - $
NPO, Beginning of Year $ - $ - $
NPO, End of Year $ $ $
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TOWN OF HIGHLAND PARK
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

5. RETIREMENT PLANS - continued
The required contribution rates for fiscal year 2011 were determined as part of the December 31, 2008 and
2009 actuarial valuations. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation, December 31,

2010, also follows:

Valuation Date

12/31/2008 12/31/2009 12/31/2010

Actuarial Cost Method Projected Unit Credit Projected Unit Credit Projected Unit Credit
Amortization Method Level % of payroll Level % of payroll Level % of payroll
Remaining Amortization Period 24 years; closed period 23 years; closed period 24 9 years; closed period
Amortization Period for New Gains/Losses 25 years 25 years 25 years
Asset Valuation Method Amortized cost 10-year smoothed market ~ 10-year smoothed market
Actuarial Assumptions:

Investment Rate of Return 75% 7.5% 7.0%

Projected Salary Increases Varies byage and senice ~ Varies byage and service ~ Varies byage and senice

Includes Inflation at 3.0% 3.0% 3.0%

Cost-of-Living Adjustments 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

The funded status as of December 31, 2010, the most recent actuarial valuation date, is as follows:

Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded UAALas a
Actuarial Value of Accrued Funded AAL Covered Percentage of
Valuation Date Assets Liability (AAL) Ratio (UAAL) Payroll Covered Payroll
12/312010  $55,545,786 $ 53474771 103.9% $(2,071,015) $10,115,135 -20.5%

The schedule of funding progress, presented as Required Supplementary Information following the notes to the
financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability of benefits.

Deferred Compensation Plan

The Town offers a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457
to its employees. Under this plan, employees may defer receipt of income. The plan is administered by the
International City Management Association Retirement Corporation (ICMARC). All assets and income are held
in trust for the exclusive benefit of participants and their beneficiaries, and the Town has no fiduciary
responsibilities over the plan. It is therefore not reported in the financial statements of the Town.
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TOWN OF HIGHLAND PARK
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

6. POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Town offers retired employees the option to retain health and dental insurance coverage under the Town’s
insurance carrier until age 65 through a single employer defined benefit plan. The Town does not contribute
funds for this coverage, and Retirees are required to pay all insurance premiums. While the Town does not
directly pay premiums for retirees, the Town’s cost for insurance coverage is affected by the inclusion of these
individuals in the group. This effect on cost is considered to be an implicit rate subsidy. There were three
participating retirees receiving health and dental insurance coverage as of September 30, 2011. Since an
irrevocable trust has not been established, the plan is not accounted for as a trust fund. The plan does not issue
a separate report. Benefit provisions for retirees are not mandated by any form of employment agreement, and
the continued prevision of these benefits is based entirely on the discretion of the Town Council.

Funding Policy

Before the age of 65, retired employees are allowed to remain on the Town’s healthcare insurance. The Town
bills retirees quarterly in advance for the cost of their premiums and the Town remits these premiums at the
same time it remits premiums for active employees. Contributions to the plan by the Town during the year
(which equals the premiums paid by the Town) was zero ($0).

Annual OPEB Cost

The Town’s annual OPEB cost is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the Town (ARC), an
amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB 45. The ARC represents a level of
funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and to amortize any
unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period not to exceed thirty years, The Town’s annual OPEB cost for the
current year and the related information are as follows at September 30, 2011:

Annual Required Contribution $ 134,439
Interest of Prior Year Net OPEB Obligation 10,014
Adjustment to Annual Required Contribution (6,520)
Annual OPEB Cost 137,933
Contributions Made -
Increase in Net OPEB Obligation 137,933
Net Obligation, Beginning of Year 222,536
Net Obligation, End of Year $ 360,469
Percentage of OPEB Costs Contributed 0%
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TOWN OF HIGHLAND PARK
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011
6. POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - continued

Funding Status and Funding Progress

The funded status of the plan as of actuarial measurement date of January 11, 2011 was as follows:

Actuarial Accrued Liability $ 1,369,234
Actuarial Value of Plan Assets -
Unfunded Acturial Accrued Liability $ 1,369,234
Funded Ration 0%
Covered Payroll $ 10,115,135
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liabilityas a

Percentage of Covered Payroll 14%

Since the Town did not establish an irrevocable trust, plan assets will always be reported as zero ($0). Because
the actuarial accrued liability is the implicit rate subsidy of premiums, the Town believes that its actual health
plan postemployment benefit will not grow significantly over time. The Town has chosen, therefore, to fund
these benefits on a pay-as-you-go method.

7. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

During the current year, the Town purchased treated water from the Dallas County Park Cities Municipal Utility
District ("DCPCMUD") for $1.2388 for each 1,000 gallons consumed. The Town entered into a contract with the
District on April 19, 2004 which expires on April 18, 2024. The current year charges for services were
$2,643,547.

Sewage service is provided to the Town under a contract with the City of Dallas, which expires February 22,
2014. The charge for this service is based upon fluctuations in capital expenditures and expenses made by the
City of Dallas and is calculated based on the average water sales over the four winter months of the previous
year. The current year charges for service were $911,739.

The use of a sanitary landfill for solid waste disposal is provided to the Town under a contract with Waste
Management / Skyline Landfill, which expires when the existing landfill has reached its capacity. This landfill
was permitted by the State of Texas in 1995 with a projected life of 37 years. The current year charges for
service were $95,832.

The Town entered into a ten (10) year contract effective May 1, 2007 for solid waste collection services with
Allied Waste Services. The contract pricing is based upon fixed rates for different service locations and
classifications. The current year charges for service were $805,838.

The Town also entered into a ten (10) year contract effective May 1, 2007 with Allied Waste Services for

collection of recyclable materials. Charges are based upon changes in the CPI-U index for Dallas/Ft. Worth.
Charges for service are based upon residential service locations and amounted to $90,883 for the current year.
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TOWN OF HIGHLAND PARK
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

7. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - continued

The sweeping of streets, alleys and cleaning of storm sewer inlets is performed under contract with Moore
Disposal. Frequency of service is established under contract and current year charges were $34,112.

Certain litigation was outstanding against the Town as of September 30, 2011. In the opinion of the Town's
attorneys, the potential loss on such litigation would not be significant to the Town's financial statements.

Risk Management

The Town places all of its property, liability and workers' compensation coverage with Texas Municipal League,
a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk management and insurance program. The Town
pays an annual premium to Texas Municipal League for its general insurance coverage. The risk pool is self-
sustaining through member premiums and reinsures through commercial companies for claims in excess of
$1,000,000 for workers' compensation, $250,000 for property and $1,000,000 for liability damage.

The limits of liability and deductible are:

Limit

General Liability $ 5,000,000

$ 10,000,000
Auto Liability $ 2,000,000
Law Enforcement Liability $ 2,000,000

$ 5,000,000
Errors and Omissions Liability $ 2,000,000

$ 4,000,000
Auto Physical Damage $ 1,720,763
Real & Personal Property $ 16,457,410
Mobile Equipment $ 138,900
Boiler & Machinery $ 10,881,600
Workers' Compensation $

$

Each Occurrence
Annual Aggregate

Each Occurrence
Each Occurrence
Annual Aggregate

Each Wrongful Act
Annual Aggregate

Each Occurrence
Annual Aggregate

Deductible

$ 25000

$ 25000
$ 25000

$ 25000

10,000
10,000
1,000
500

$ 50,000
$ 150,000

© A N N

There have been no changes in the liability insurance coverage amounts in over ten (10) years. Auto physical
damage, equipment and property limits have changed to reflect changes in replacement cost of insured assets.
All coverage amounts have been sufficient to satisfy any and all claims filed against the Town.
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TOWN OF HIGHLAND PARK
Schedule of Funding Progress
Texas Municipal Retirement System
Required Supplementary Information
Last Six Fiscal Years (Unaudited)

(6)
(4) UAAL as a
(1) (2) (3) Unfunded (5) Percent of
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Funded AAL Annual Covered
Valuation Value Accrued Ratio (UAAL) Covered Payroll
Date of Assets Liability (AAL)  (1)/(2) (2)-(1) Payroll (4)/(5)

12/31/2005 $31,923,686  $37,739,645 84.6% $5815959 §$7597,182  76.6%
12/31/2006 $33,541,290  $39,966,250 83.9% $6,424,960  $8,009,520  80.2%
12/31/2007 $35,020,220  $40,283,066 86.9% $5,262,846  $8,585683 61.3%
12/31/2008 $32,992,375  $38,190,219 86.4% $5,197,844  $9243239  56.2%
12/31/2009 $35,783,310  $40,849,276 87.6% $5,065966 $10,069,402  50.3%
12/31/2010 $55545,786  $53,474,771 103.9% $(2,071,015) $10,115,135 -20.5%



COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Capital Projects Fund — The purpose of the Capital Projects Fund is to account for large dollar capital projects
and infrastructure maintenance projects. Funding for these items comes from transfers from the General Fund’s
current revenues and/or cash reserves, as the Town Council determines each year.
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TOWN OF HIGHLAND PARK

Capital Projects Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and Actual
For the year ended September 30, 2011

REVENUES:
Interest on Investments
Intergovernmental
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers In

Net Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Financing
Sources Over Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

FUND BALANCES, beginning of year
FUND BALANCES, end of year
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Variance -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 90,000 $ 112800 $ 60,257 $ (52,543)
- - 211,751 211,751
1,000,000 - - -
1,090,000 112,800 272,008 159,208
10,835,000 10,843,465 3,926,731 6,916,734
10,835,000 10,843,465 3,926,731 6,916,734
(9,745,000) (10,730,665) (3,654,723) 7,075,942
3,254,765 3,254,765 2,096,450 (1,158,315)
3,254,765 3,254,765 2,096,450 (1,158,315)
(6,490,235) (7,475,900) (1,558,273) 5,917,627
13,271,234 13,271,234 13,271,234 -
$ 6,780999 $ 5795334 $ 11,712961 $§ 5917627




NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Stormwater Drainage — Accounts for the collection of fees to protect the public health and safety from loss
of life and property caused by surface water overflows, surface water stagnation and pollution arising from
non-point source runoff within the Town.

Employee Christmas — Accounts for the collection of unsolicited contributions of citizens and the
distribution to the Town’s employees.

Forfeited Property — Accounts for the receipt of forfeited assets as a result of criminal activities and the
funding of crime prevention programs and equipment.

Court Technology Fund - Accounts for the Municipal Court technology fee charged to defendants as
specified by state law.

Court Security Fund — Accounts for the Municipal Court security fee charged to defendants as specified by
state law.
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TOWN OF HIGHLAND PARK
Combining Balance Sheet
Non-Major Governmental Funds
September 30, 2011

Special Revenue

Stormwater ~ Employee Forfeited Court Court
Drainage Christmas Property Technology Security Total
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 342536 § 2378 § 494  $ 46274  $145219  $536,901
Receivables (net of allowances
for uncollectibles)-
Other 13,589 - - - - 13,589
Prepaid ltems 98 - - - - 98
Total Assets and Other Debits $ 356223 § 2378 § 494 § 46274  $145219  $550,588
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Vouchers Payable $ 495  § - $ - $ 15 § - $ 610
Accrued Liabilities 1,095 - - - - 1,095
Total Liabilities 1,590 - - 115 - 1,705
FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable
Prepaid ltems 98 - - - - 98
Restricted
Crime Prevention - - 494 - - 494
Court Technology - - - 46,159 - 46,159
Court Security - - - - 145,219 145,219
Committed
Stormwater Drainage Improvements 343,665 - - - - 343,665
Employee Christmas Fund - 2,378 - - - 2,378
Assigned
Drainage 10,870 - - - - 10,870
Total Fund Balances 354,633 2,378 494 46,159 145,219 548,883
Total Liabilities and
Fund Balance $ 356223 § 2378 § 494  § 46,274  $145219  $550,588
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

Equipment Replacement Fund — The purpose of the Equipment Replacement Fund is to account for the
cost associated with the acquisition of specific equipment through the rental of the same to other
departments.
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TOWN OF HIGHLAND PARK
Equipment Replacement Fund
Schedule of Changes in Equipment and Accumulated Depreciation
September 30, 2011

Balance Additions Retirements Balance
October 1, and and September 30,
2010 Transfers In  Transfers Out 2011
EQUIPMENT:

Vehicles and Rolling Stock $3,470494 $ 1,062,640 $ 241712 § 4291422
Office Equipment 1,608,300 118,033 145,756 1,580,577
Work in Progress 50,000 56,726 50,000 56,726
Totals 5,128,794 1,237,399 437,468 5,928,725

ACCUMULAT ED DEPRECIATION:
Vehicles and Rolling Stock 1,613,275 339,669 200,620 1,752,324
Office Equipment 1,387,946 144,905 146,447 1,386,404
Totals 3,001,221 484,574 347,067 3,138,728
NET EQUIPMENT $2127573 § 752825 $ 90,401 $ 2,789,997




STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the Town of Highland Park’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as
a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and related
supplementary information says about the Town's overall financial health.

Contents Page
Financial Trends 73-78
This section contains information to help the reader understand how the
Town'’s financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity 79-82
This section contains information to help the reader assess the Town’s
most significant local revenue source, the property tax.

Debt Capacity 83-84
This section contains information to help the reader assess the
affordability of the Town’s current levels of outstanding debt and the
Town'’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information 85-87
This section contains information to help the reader understand the
environment within which the Town'’s financial activities take place.

Operating Information 88-90
This section contains information to help the reader understand how the
information in the Town’s financial report relates to the services the Town
provides and the activities it performs.
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